
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 3, 2009  
 
The Honorable Alan B. Mollohan    The Honorable Frank R. Wolf 
Chairman       Ranking Member  
House Appropriations Committee    House Appropriations Committee  
Subcommittee on Commerce, Justice,    Subcommittee on Commerce, Justice, 
Science and Related Agencies    Science and Related Agencies 
H-309, the Capitol      1016 Longworth House Office Building  
Washington, DC 20515      Washington, DC 20515  
 
Re: FY 2010 Funding for the Legal Services Corporation  
 
Dear Mr. Chairman and Ranking Member Wolf:  
 
On behalf of the American Bar Association (ABA), which has more than 400,000 individual 
lawyer members nationwide, I first thank you both for your long-standing commitment to the 
principal of equal access to the justice system for all Americans.  We also appreciated the 
opportunity to discuss this important issue with many Subcommittee members during our recent 
“ABA Day in Washington” program.   
 
Soon your Subcommittee will mark up the Commerce, Justice, Science and Related Agencies 
(CJS) appropriations bill for FY 2010.  The ABA thanks Congress for increasing the Legal 
Services Corporation (LSC) budget to $390 million for FY 2009.  This is a significant step 
toward providing more adequate funding for a vital program that has been woefully underfunded 
for over two decades.   
 
For FY 2010, the bipartisan LSC Board requested $485.1 million in its continued effort to close 
the justice gap over the next several years.  Yet, this is still far less than the amount appropriated 
in FY 1995, which would be about $578 million in today’s dollars, and even farther below the 
amount appropriated in FY 1981--$749 million in today’s dollars.  Without continued 
incremental increases in federal funding, many more will be denied assistance in the future.  
President Obama in his FY 2010 budget request asked Congress to provide $435 million for LSC.  
 
In April, the presidents of every State Bar (plus the District of Columbia, the Virgin Islands and 
Puerto Rico) and the four major Bars of Color wrote the Subcommittee to request at least $435 
million for LSC.  In addition, more than 53 Senators (including your colleagues from West 
Virginia and Virginia) signed a similar letter also supporting at least $435 million for LSC for FY 
2010. (Copies of both letters are attached.)  The ABA and individual lawyers nationwide join 
the State Bar presidents, your State colleagues and the Administration to request that the 
Subcommittee increase LSC’s FY 2010 funding to at least $435 million to help meet the 
urgent and expanding need for civil legal services.  
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At the same time, the ABA believes that the recession, which has both squeezed the federal 
budget and increased the number of Americans in need of legal help, warrants a fresh look at 
ways that will, without cost to the government, significantly increase the amount of money 
available to provide legal aid to the poor.  In addition to providing the requested $45 million 
funding increase, the ABA strongly urges the Subcommittee to modify at least three measures 
that have been included in appropriations riders since 1995 that have impeded LSC in fulfilling 
its mission of providing basic legal services to qualified persons.  Specifically, we request that the 
Subcommittee eliminate (1) the restriction that prevents recipients of LSC funding from freely 
utilizing – without being subject to federally imposed restrictions – state, local, private and other 
non-LSC funds to provide needed legal assistance to poor clients; (2) the restriction that prevents 
LSC recipient programs from obtaining statutorily permitted attorneys’ fees; and (3) the 
restriction on class actions.  These changes are sure to expand access to justice for low-income 
families without imposing unjustifiable costs on defendants.   
 
The restriction on use of other non-LSC funds by local legal aid recipients of LSC funding greatly 
diminishes the ability of LSC-funded programs to raise other funds from state and local 
governments, charitable foundations and private individuals. The restriction prevents these other 
funders from giving money to LSC-funded programs because the funds often cannot be used as 
the donor intends. The restriction has created great inefficiency in the legal aid system across the 
nation; entirely new and separate local legal aid programs had to be created to accept non-LSC 
funds in order to facilitate the donor’s intent.  The result has created a situation where hundreds of 
thousands of dollars in limited resources are squandered on needless duplication.  
 
The restriction barring recovery of statutorily authorized attorneys’ fees further diminishes the 
scarce resources available to support civil legal aid programs.  Perhaps more important, it 
eliminates a critical source of leverage in many cases, putting legal aid lawyers at a grave 
disadvantage in attempting to negotiate settlements for their clients.  
 
Both restrictions offend basic principles of federalism.  They require independent legal aid 
programs to act in ways that are contrary to the expressed desires of state and local governments, 
local individuals and charities and state fee-recovery statutes.  While it is understandable that the 
federal government dictate what can be done with federal funds, it is unacceptable for the federal 
government to tell local public service programs what they can do with other funds.  Furthermore, 
states have, in their own sovereign wisdom, chosen to permit fee-shifting in certain situations and 
have therefore structured an appropriate balance between parties operating within their justice 
systems.  Federal interference denies states the right to determine how their justice systems 
should operate. 
 
The ABA has longstanding policy favoring a legal aid system that does not interfere with poor 
persons’ full access to the courts or deny advocacy that is available to others in our society.  
Removal of these two restrictions will be a modest step toward adjusting the legal aid system so 
that it once again can approach the promise of ensuring equal access to justice for all.   
 
The President’s budget request asks Congress to eliminate these two restrictions and also 
recommends lifting the restriction on LSC-funded programs using federal funds to file class 
actions.  The ABA strongly believes that class actions should be available to low income victims 
of unscrupulous practices.  Should eliminating this restriction prove controversial, we urge the 
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Subcommittee to consider compromise language that would enable groups of similarly targeted 
poor people to effectively and efficiently obtain justice in the courts.   
 
Finally, in addition to working with Congress to oversee and more appropriately fund LSC, the 
ABA provides information and resources to strongly encourage and assist private lawyers to 
provide free legal services to persons of limited means.  While individual lawyers cannot be 
expected to fulfill the government’s obligation of ensuring access to the legal system for all, the 
ABA’s 2008 study “Supporting Justice II:  A Report on the Pro Bono Work of America’s 
Lawyers” (released February 2009) shows that 73 percent of respondents, representing a broad 
range of practice settings including small and large firms, provide pro bono services to persons of 
limited means and to organizations that address the needs of persons of limited means.  These 
attorneys spend an average of 41 hours a year on their pro bono cases.  Many lawyers perform 
pro bono work working with the local legal aid program or through the local bar associations.  
The LSC, through its funding of private attorney involvement programs, provides the 
infrastructure and central coordinating resource that undergirds a major portion of the pro bono 
efforts of private lawyers nationwide. 
 
We appreciate your support for the funding request, and we look forward to working with you to 
increase access to justice for all, including ways to address how these particular restrictions can 
be removed from future appropriations bills.  Thank you for your consideration. 
 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
 
H. Thomas Wells, Jr. 
 
cc:  
Members, House CJS Appropriations Subcommittee   
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